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Located at 1901 Webber Street, the two-story, rough-textured stucco and cast stone, 
Mediterranean Revival Style building was built as the South Side Elementary School 
in 1926. The school was designed by architect M. Leo Elliott of Tampa and St. Peters­ 
burg and prints of the original drawings which are extant provide excellent documenta­ 
tion of the original construction materials and appearance of the South Side School. 1 
Photographic documentation of the entrance and west elevations of the school is 
provided by a newspaper photograph which appeared in the Sarasota Herald in 1926. 2 
The plan of the school is centered around a central courtyard, located at the north 
eXevation; exterior open corridors located at the first and second floors provided 
access to the classrooms, in addition to providing light and ventilation. The entrance 

^elevation was located at the south elevation and was divided into five units: the 
^entrance pavilion was located at the center of the south elevation and was flanked at 
the east and west sides by five-bay recessed banks of windows; the end wings'were 
pedimented structures designed as severe stucco facades with the only ornamentation 
provided by the appearance of small balconies located at the second floor. The 
entrance pavilion was decorated with a cast stone ornamentation manufactured by 
Fiacher & Jirouch, and the grotfhd floor-was marked by a three-bay open loggia, wit 
bank of five"windows flanked by large ,consojLes at the second floor and the frontis­ 
piece topped by an oculus with a -cast stone grille and patera center and laurel wreath 
enframeinent. The original gabled, half-gabled and hipped roof projections were 
originally covered in barrel tiling. The west elevation wing which intersects the 
west end of the entrance facade is original to the structure and is visible in the 
1926 Sarasota Herald photograph of the South Side School. 4 The wings located at the 
east and north elevations are not part of the 1926 design of the School and do not 
contribute to the site. The original school building is well-maintained and is worth 
for inclusion on the National Register.

TEXT SUPPORTING SUMMARY OF PRESENT AND ORIGINAL PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The two-story, rough-textured stucco and cast stone Mediterranean Revival Style, 
irregular, rectangular building located at 1901 Webber Street, was built as the Sou^ 
Side Elementary School in 1926. The school was designed by architect M. Leo Elliot; 
of Tampa and St. Petersburg, and prints of the original drawings which were used to 
build both the South Side and Bay Haven Elementary Schools, have survived and have I 
preserved by the Sarasota County School Board, Facilities Planning Department. 5 
Additional documentation of the original appearance of the South Side School exists 
in a newspaper photograph of the south and west elevations which appeared in the 
Sarasota Herald of 1926. 6 Few alterations have occurred to the South Side School.

The irregular, rectangular planned structure centered around a courtyard located at 
the north elevation. Open corridors which faced the central courtyard provided 
access to classrooms on the first and second floors and increased light and ventila 
tion. The entrance placed at the center of the south elevation was marked by an 
open, three-bay loggia leading to a central lobby. To the east of the lobby, a
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kindergarten and classrooms were placed and to the west was located a private office, 
the principal's office and several classrooms. Also located on the ground floor 
were a set of living quarters, the bathrooms and a boiler room. 8 At the second 
floor entrance block a library and teachers' room existed, with classrooms located 
off the open corridors to the east and west of the central block. The roof plan 
consisted of a series of gabled, half-gabled and hipped roof projections which were 
clad in barrel tiling and set on cast stone brackets. 9

Located at the south elevation, the entrance facade was divided into five units 
with the pedimented entrance pavilion located at the center and flanked by recessed 
bays located to the east and west and divided into five-bays of windows at the 
first and second floors. The end wings of the south elevation were severe rough- 
textured stucco facades which were pedimented and decorated only with a narrow, 
reund-arched window which originally opened on to a metal semi-circular iron 
balcony. The entrance pavilion was highly ornamented with cast stone manufactured 
by Fischer & Jirouch. 10 The ground-floor entrance was marked by a three-bay open 
loggia carried on twisted shaft columns with cast stone capitals. The arcuated 
loggia was flanked by massive pilasters with foliated shafts which carried an 
entablature of dentilled and rinceau moldings. The spandrel of each arched opening 
was decorated with a motif of open books executed in cast stone. The second floor 
of the entrance block was divided into five bays of windows which were framed by 
console brackets. The continuous 1inter of the five-bay window was decorated by an 
egg and dart molding and the top of the frontispiece was marked by a large oculus 
which was protected by a cast stone screen with patera center and laurel wreath 
enframement. A large cast stone cornucopia was placed at either side of the oculus 
opening.

Located behind the entrance facade at the east and west elevations were two, 1-%- 
story, shed-roofed aisles which were provided with round-arched openings with 
elaborate cast stone panels marking the "Boys" and "Girls" entrances. The "Boys" 
entrance was originally located at the west and the "Girls" entrance was placed at 
the east elevation. The original northwest elevation was marked by a pedimented, 
severe stucco facade with blind balcony opening identical to the entrance elevation 
and wings.

Additions were added to the South Side School in 1952. 11 The flat-roofed additions 
reflected the original open corridor concept with an arcuated ground floor corridor 
and a second floor trabeated corridor.

Alterations; The original barrel tiled roof surface has been removed and replaced 
by a synthetic roofing material. The application of barrel tiling to the south 
elevation would greatly enhance the appearance of the significant school building. 
In 1976 the original window sash was covered with break metal and the glazing was 
replaced by tempered bronze safety glass; the original transom openings were 
blocked.^
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SUMMARYOF STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The two-story, rough-textured stucco, Mediterranean Revival structure located at 1901 
We_bber Street was built as the South Side Elementary School in 1926 according to the 
designs of M. Leo Elliott of Tampa and St. Petersburg. 1 ^ ^lr. Elliott's drawings, 
"which were issued in March of 1926, were used to construct the South Side and the 
Bay Haven Elementary Schools (MRNS #31, 2901 West T-amiami Circle). 14 The South Side 
School was built by the T. A. Monk Company. The construction of the two elementary 
schools and the Sarasota High School (MRNS #34, 1001 South Tamiami Trail) were part of 
a major-county-wide school expansion program. 6 The sites selected were indicative of 
the expansion of the residential boundaries of the City of Sarasota. The South Side 
and the Bay Haven Elementary ScRooIs were-built at a cost of $77,000, each. The 
construction, land- acquisition and operating expenditures for the three new school 
facilities were floated by a bond issue in~excess of $1',500,000. The location of 
the South Side School was due in part to.a planning study which was prepared in 1924 
and issued in 1925 by the nationally known City Planner, John Nolen, of Cambridge, 
Massachusetts. Mr. Nolen actually recommended that four schools be constructed, two 
within a %-mile radius of the City and one for the Indian Beach community and one for 
the Sarasota Heights area. Mr. Nolen advised that the South Side School be construc­ 
ted for the Sarasota Heights and surrounding southern region and originally located 
the school east of Orange Avenue between Bahia Vista and Loma Linda. The architect of 
record, M..Leo Elliott, was an eclectic designer who was equally as skilled working in 
the Mediterranean Revival Style as in the "Collegiate Gothic," which was selected for 
the Sarasota High School, MRNS #34. In addition to his highly successful school
designs, Mr. Elliott designed the first skyscraper, the First National Company's Main

20Street structure in 1924. u The South Side School with its remarkable cast stone and 
glazed terra cotta entrance frontispiece and classrooms skillfully arranged around a 
central interior court corridor is significant not only architecturally, but for the 
integrity of the building and site. In constant use since 1926, the South Side 
School is beautifully maintained and the entrance facade, in particular, is remakrably 
intact.

TEXT SUPPORTING SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Located at 1901 Webber Street, the two-story, Mediterranean Revival Style, rough- 
stucco facade building was designed by architect M. Leo Elliott of Tampa and St. 
Petersburg and was built as the South Side Elementary School in 1926. The "Element 
School" drawings which were issued by Mr. ; Elliott in 1926 were used in the construct: 
of both the South side and Bay Haven Elementary Schools, MRNS #31, located at 2901. 
West Tamiami Circle ̂ ^ and was constructed by T. A. Monk. 2 ^ Each elementary school
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was built at a cost of $77,000, and the two elementary schools and the Sarasota High 
School located at 1001 South Tamiami Trail, were part of a major school facility 
expansion program undertaken by the County in 1926. 2^ The cost of land acquisition, 
construction and operating expenses in the school construction program were funded 
by a bond issue estimated to have been in excess of $1,500,000. 2 ^

The location of the school sites was indicative of the residential development 
patterns of the city, which expanded to the north, south and east. In a planning 
report commissioned by the City and issued in 1925, the city planner, John Nolen of 
Cambridge, Massachusetts recommended that four elementary schools be provided. 26 
Two of the sites which Mr. Nolen recommended, one to be located on 9th Street between 
East and Fletcher Avenues and one to be built on Alderman, were never implemented. 27 
Mr. Nolen also suggested that an elementary school be provided for the Sarasota 
Heights community on a site east of Orange Avenue between Bahia Vista and Loma Linda, 

...a recommendation which was realized in the construction of the South Side School, 
on a site ^further south on Webber Street. 28 It was Mr. Nolen's intent that each 
school be within' walking distance of the residential communities served by each 
school facility. 2^

The architect of record, M. Leo Elliott, was a master in the design of school facili­ 
ties. The plan of the South Side and Bay Haven Elementary Schools centered around 
a"courtyard-and open courtyard corridors linked the classroom areas, while providing 
light and ventilation. The Mediterranean Revival Style-,.cast stone ornamentation 
present^at the entrance elevations of both the South Side and Bay Haven Schools 
was skillfully designed and integrated. As an eclectic designer, Mr. Elliott was 
capable of executing two elementary schools in the Mediterranean Revival Style and 
the Sarasota High School in the Collegiate Gothic Style. The South Side and Bay 
Haven Schools were rough-textured stucco facade structures, while the Sarasota High 
School was presented in red brick and glazed, ornamental terra cotta. (Please refer 
to MRNS #34, 1001 South Tamiami Trail.) Prior to his undertaking of the three 
school facilities, Mr. Elliott designed the first skyscraper for the City of 
Sarasota. The multi-story First National Company building on Main Street was 
designed in 1924 and is indicative of Mr. Elliott's versatility. 30 The First 
National Company building later became the Orange Blossom Hotel.

The South Side Elementary School has remained in service as a school operated by the 
Sarasota School Board. Both the original Elliott building and additions have been 
well-maintained. There have been few alterations to the original Elliott-designed 
building and the South Side School is significant for the integrity of the 
architectural fabric and site.
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